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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
Mikusu India Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Staterents

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Mikusu India Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements,
including a summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information

(hereinafter referred to as “the Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, the loss (including other

comprehensive income), the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements,
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the Other Information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Report but does not include the
Standalone Financial Statements and our Independent Auditors’ Report thereon. Our opinion on the
Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
Other Information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date
of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a materially inconsistent information with the
Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appear to be
materially misstated, we are required to report that fact.

The Other Information as aforesaid is expected to be made available to us after the date of this Auditor’s
Report. We will read the Other Information as and when it is made available to us and if conclude that
there is a material misstatement, we are required to communicate the matter with those charged with
governance and take necessary steps as may be required thereafter.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act and the relevant provisions of
the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
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maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with 5As will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these Standalone Financial Statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

2. Obtain anunderstanding of internal control relevant to the auditin order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has an adequate internal

financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
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estimates and related disclosures made by management,

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually
or in aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
gualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with thern all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the attached Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
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knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books except for the matters stated in paragraph 2(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

C. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

d.  In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

eg.  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. wWith reference to maintenance of accounts and other matters therewith, reference is invited
to paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 2(i){vi} below on
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended.

g.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial contrals with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone Financial Statements.

h.  Wwith respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has not paid remuneration to its directors and therefore the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

i With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have an impact on its
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financial position except as stated in Note 26 to the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were material foreseeable losses,

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other
person or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“intermediaries”) with the
understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall,
whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ["Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security, or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the company from any persan(s) or entity(ies) including foreign
entities ("Funding Parties"”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest In other
persons ar entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

Based on such audit procedures considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (iv){a) and (iv) (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

There are no events of dividend proposed, declared and paid by the Company during
the year until the date of this report, hence compliance with provisions of Section 123
of the Companies Act, 2013, does not apply.

Based on our examination which included test checks, except for instances/ matters
mentioned below, the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its
books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the
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same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in
the software except

i) the audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for accounting
software "Navision" to log any direct data changes, used for maintenance of all
accounting records by the Company.

ii) At present the audit trail is preserved only for a period of six months. All audit trails
beyond six months are not preserved due to space constraints. Further, back up of
the audit trail has not been preserved as per statutory requirements for record
retention due to cloud space constraints.

Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit
trail feature being tampered with.

Further, as required by proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention,
considering the fact that audit trail beyond six months is not preserved, the Company
is not in a position to retain records as per the requirements of the Act relating to record
retention.

For Matvarlal Vepari & Co. LLP

(Formerly known as Natvarlal Vepari & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No- 106971W/W101085

R

Meha Sutariya
Partner

M. Mo. — 150816
Mumbai, Dated: May 23, 2025
UDIN: 25150816BMUKXH1722
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ANMNEXURE A To the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of

our report to the Members of Mikusu India Private Limited of even date

To the best of our knowledge and infarmation, audit procedures followed by us, according to the
information provided to us by the Company and the examination of the books of account and records
inthe normal course of audit, we state that

(i} a.

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) There are no intangible assets and hence this clause is not applicable to the company.

Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

There are no immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the
lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the
Standalone Financial Statements hence clause 3(i}(c) of the Companies {Auditors Report)
Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or
both during the year,

There are no proceedings initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as
at March 31, 2025, for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act,1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

{ii) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. On the basis of examination of records, we are of the opinion that the coverage
and procedure of such verification is appropriate and that no discrepancies of 10% or more in
the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on such verification.

{b) The Company does not have sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs 5 crores in
aggregate at any point of time during the year from banks or financial institutions on the basis
of security of current assets and hence clause 3(ii}(b) of the Companies [Auditors Report) Order
2020 is not applicable to the Company.
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(iliy The Company has not made investments in companies, firms, or Limited Liability Partnerships.

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The Company has also not provided guarantee or security or granted loans or advances in the
nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, or any other parties hence
clause 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii){e) and 3(iii)(f) of the Companies (Auditors Report)
Order 2020 are not applicable to the Company.

The company has not made any investments or given any loans, security or guarantees during
the year and hence the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are not applicable for the
year.

The Company has not accepted deposits from the public or amounts that are deemed to be
deposits pursuant to sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
5013 and rules framed thereunder. As informed to us, there is no order that has been passed by
Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court
or any other tribunal in respect of the said sections.

The maintenance of the cost records under the sub-section (1) of section 148 Act has not been
prescribed by The Central Government and hence sub-clause 3{vi) of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

a. The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and Services Tax, Provident fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax,
Service Tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues
with the appropriate authorities during the year. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amount is payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding
as at March 31, 2025, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable
except shown as below.

‘Name of Nature of dues Periodto | Duedate | Dateof
‘the hthe | | payment
statute '

e e | et i S, = T e | e [ e e T R e |y
Income Tax Deducted at 0.02 Various Prior to Unpaid
Tax Source as per traces Years Apr2d

site
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b. There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

(viii) There are no transactions that were not recorded in the books of account, and which has been

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix) (a) The company has not delayed or defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in

(x)

(xi)

the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(¢) The company has not availed of any term loan during the year and hence sub-clause 3(ix)(c) of
the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

(d) No funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the Standalone Financial Statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary.

(f) The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiary company and hence sub-clause 3(ix)(f) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020
is not applicable to the Company

(a) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) during the year.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debenture fully or partly or optionally convertible debentures during the year under
audit.

(a) No fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by usin
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government during the year and upto the date of this report and hence clause 3(xi)(b) of
the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the company.
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[xiv)
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(xvi)

[xvii)
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(c) The Company does not have and is not required to have a whistle blower mechanism in place.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence clauses 3(xii)(a), 3(xii) (b) and 3(xii)(c) of the
Companies [Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

Since the company is wholly owned subsidiary company, provisions of Section 177 is not
applicable to the company. All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 in so far as our examination of the proceedings of the meetings
of the Board of Directors are concerned. The details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable Accounting
Standards.

{a) The Company is not required to have an internal audit system as per Section 138 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly the Company does not have an internal audit system, hence
clause 3(xiv)(a) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

(b) Since the company is not required to have an internal audit system sub clause 3(xiv)(b) of the
Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company

The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors.

(a) The nature of business and the activities of the Company are such that the Company is not
required to obtain registration under section 45-I1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 and
hence sub-clause 3(xvi)(a), 3{xvi)(b) and 3(xvi)(c) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020
is not applicable to the company.

(b) There are no core investment companies within the Group (asdefinedinthe Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016).

On an examination of the Statement of Profit and Loss account, we state that the Company has
incurred cash losses amounting to Rs 1.43 crores in the current financial year and Rs. 16.22 crores
in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly clause
(3)(xviii) Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
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other information accompanying the Standalone Financial Statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and representations and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

Since there is no obligation on the company towards Corporate Social Responsibility during the
current year, provisions of clause 3(xx)(a) and 3{xx)(b) of The Companies (Auditors Report) Order
2020 is not applicable to the Company.

For Natvarlal Vepari & Co LLP

(Formerly known as Natvarlal Vepari & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Mo- 106971W/W101085

e

MNeha Sutariya
Partner
M. No. — 150816

Mumbal, Dated: May 23, 2025
UDIN: 25150816BMUKXH1722
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of Mikusu India Private Limited of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements of
Mikusu India Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone Financial Statement of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note")
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
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perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to Standalone Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls

operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to Standalone Financial Statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to Standalone

Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial

Statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial 5tatements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to Standalone Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to Standalone Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025 , based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Matvarlal Vepari & Co.

(Formerly known as Natvarlal Vepari & Co.)
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No- 106971W/W101085

Meha Sutariya
Partner

M. Mo. — 150816
Mumbai, Dated: May 23, 2025
UDIN: 25150816BMUKKH1722
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FAKUELY INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN  UZAZA9MHI02 20 TCIRI2T5

Standalane Balance Shect as at 315t March 2025

[A0 figures are Rupees In Crores unless olherwise stated)

Particulars

Note
Ha.

A at
31 March 2015

As at
31 March 2024

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
[8}  Property, plant and equipments
) Firancial assats
(il Mon-Currert Irvestments
) Deferred tax assets {Het)
1d) Qther noa-current assels
Total Non-Current Assets

Current Assets
1a] Inweniofies

(b} Financial assets
[} Trade recebvables
[il) Cash and cash equiva’ents
[iii) Cher Finangial Assets

[14] Other current assets

Tatal Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

[a)  Equity share capital
[B]  Other equity

Tatal Equity

Uatlitles

Non-Current Liabllittes

[a)  Flrnancial Usbdtitles
{i] Borrawings

[0]  Prosdsions

Total Non-Current Lakiftles

Current Liabifitles
[} Firantial Liakdities
(il Trade payables
tatal cutstanding dues of micra enterprizes and
wnall enterprises; and
tatal autstanding dues of ereditors cther than
miero entespeites and small enterprises,
(il Other Finzneial iabilities
[} Other current lisbilities
1) Provdslons
Total Current Liabilitles
Total UakiTtles
TATAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

A e Db sl

11
12

13

14
15
i1

0.17 024
593 6958
4.96 4.72
0.03 0.00
1114 11.94
11.73 1163
wear 4794
176 850
0.0z .
065 3,16
104.23 G163
11637 103,57
005 0.05
{15.17] {14.01)
{15.12] {13.58)
11 31.14
041 0.7
3552 341
579
113 .82
§.54 ]
151 133
000 0.00
55.97 E6.14
13149 117.55
116.37 103.57

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the finandial statements

&5 per gur report of oven date

For Natvarlal Viepari ard Co LLP

{Farmerly known as Natvarlal Vepari & Co )
Chartered Atcountants

Firm Registeratipn No. iﬂEBTllu'ul_.ﬁ.‘-'il:lil:IES

Heha Sutariys
Partner
M.Na 150816

Place Murmbai
Date: May 13, 2025

Far and beha'f of Board of Dérectors of
Mkusu bndia Private Umited

W=~

EK Shetty
D¥rectar
OiN; DOJ3E T3

5 K. Shetty
Drector
DI 00038581




MIKUSL INDIA FRIVATE LIMITED

CIN ; U24299MH2022PTCIRO2TE

Stardalone Ststement of Prafit and Loss for year ended 315t March 2005
[AE figures are Rupees In Crores unless otherwise stated)

Naote

Particulars Mo, PARE S 20234
1 INCOME
Revenue from Operationg 16 15240 LFES]
Tthet Income 17 006 002
TOTAL INCOME 15245 5293
I EMPEMSES
Furchise of stock In trade 18 12673 107.14
Changes in Inventory of Steck in Trade 19 {1.1m) {21.42)
Ermpiayes Benelit Expenses mn 134 1132
Finence Costs 11 3 1840
Depreciation and Amaortlsation Expenges 12 008 013
Other Expenses 13 1248 12.30
TOTAL EXPENSES 15357 10927
Profitf[Loss) before Tax (151} {16.35)
Tax Evpenis 24
{a]l Current Tax 4 5
(b) Deferred tax charge [ {cradit] o {408}
(0.7 {4.04)
Prafitf{Loss] for the Year (1.24] {12.28)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
terms that will not be reclassified Lo prafit or loss
= Rermeasurement Gain/{Losi] on Defired Benelt Flan LR E] 0.01
= Tawes thereon [ouna) -
Total Comprehensive Income for the yesr {1.14) {12.37)
Earning per equity share of face value of Rs. 10/ each (in
Rupeas)
Basie and Diluted 25 (14540} |2,455.12)
The accarmparying notes are anintegral part of the financial statements
A per our report of even date Forand behalf of Board of Directors of
For Hatvarlal Vepari and Co LLP M&usu Inda Private Uirited

[Fermerly knawn as Nabvarlal Vepari & €a.)
Chartered Accountants

Firrn Registerstion No. 10897 1W,W101085 \Qw

ALK Salty &

Neba Sulariys Director Director
Partres DN DD03ET0Y [N 00038681
M. Na 150316

Place Murbai
Flace Mumbai

Date: May 33, 2035



PEUSU INDIA FRIVATE LIMITED

CIN : U24333MH 202 2PTCIRDITE

Stendalane Cash flew Statement for the year ended 315t March 2015
(A figures are Rupees bn Crores unless otherwise stated)

Partitulars 1024-25 023-24
[h] CASH FLOW FROM OFEAATING ACTIVITIES

Frafitf[Loss) belore tay [1.51) {15.36)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipments [0.08 013
Interest Expenied 114 180
Predshan for Gratuity 013
Prowision Por Expected Credit Loss 1457 2117
Surdry Balances Written Back 0oz {0.0a)
Exchange Galn Flactuation oo} -
DOperating Prafitf{Loss) Before changes in warking capital 3.78 {12.18)

Adjustment for [Increase] fDecrease In Operating Assets

Adjistments for decrease (increase) Im inventories {1.10] 113.42]
Adjustments for decresse (increase) in trade recetvables, current [12.10] {40.00]
Adiustments for decrease (increase) in other assets current 161 [2.18]
Adjustments for decresse (increase] in other firancisl assets, current [0.02] .00

Adpustment for Incresse f(Decrease] In Operating Lishifitles

Adjustrments for Incresse (decrease] in trade payables, current 713 E3AS
Adjustrents for Increase (decrease] in other current lixbifities 011y 118
Adjustrments for increass {decrease] in pronisions 014 513
Adjustments for increase (decrease) in other financial Rabilities, eurrent 2.34 024
Cash flaw from aperations after ehanges In working capltal (1.33) {7.26)
Het Direct Taves [Pald]/Refunded {003} .
MNet Cath Flow fromflused in) Operating Activitles (r.36) (7.36)
[8] CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Furchase of property, plant and equipment [a.01] (03]
Investment in Entity [6.58]
Ret Cash Fow from/f{used in] Investing Acthvtles [a.01} [7.01}
[€] CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Preceeds from Loan taken 144 136D
Interest paid [0.11) [3.17]
Net Cash Flow from/fused In) Finantng Aoivities 1.13 22.43
Net batreasef [Decrease) in Cash ard Cath Equivalents 1E.04) 205
Cash & Cath Equivatents at beginning of period [tee Note 1) 8,80 0.74
Cash and Cash Equbalents at end of period {1ee Note 1} 176 EE]
Wates:
1 Cash and Cash equbvalents comprises ol
Cathon Mands 0,00 oaa
Balante with Banks 1.76 BEQ
Taotsl 2.76 B8O

2 The cash fow statement has been prepared undsr the indwect method 81 st ot in Fdan Arcausting Standards (Ind AS) 7,
‘Staternent of Cach Mows',

As per ou report of even date For and baball of Bosrd of Directors of
For Natvarlal Vepari and Ca LLP BAeusu I a Private Limijed
|Farmerly knawn as Natvartal Vepari & Co )
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registeration Ha, 1089710, A% 101035

Heha Sutarya ALK Shetty 5 K Shetry
Partries Director Dérector

M.No 150816 DIN; 00033703 [HN: 00032681
Place Mumbai Place Mumikai

Cate: May 23, 2075
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MIKLISU INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN G U2 53MH202IPTCIRDR 16

Standalone Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended 315t March 2075

(ANl flgures are Rupees in Crores unless atherwlie stated)

A EQUITY SHARE CAMTAL

Pafticulars Murker ol Fapevalue (% In Crores)
shares X pershire

Asat st Ageil, 2003 0,000 1000 0as

Changes in Equty Share Capital due to prioe periad srrors = - -

Restated batance at the beginning of the previous reporting pericd -

Changes during the current year . : ]

As ab 3150 March, 2024 50000 10,03 0.05

Chenges in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errars - - -

Restated balance at the beginning of the previcus reparting periad - -

Charges durirg the current year - - .

Agat 315t March, 2025 Eg_l:l:ﬂ 10.00 0,05

B, OTHER EQUITY

Farthutars Atalnv) Tokal

Earnlngs

Balznee at 3st March, 2021 [1.76) 11.78}

Prafitf {Loss) for the year [12.28] {13.28)

Add: Other Comprehenshve Income on Defined Benefit Obligation 001 0ol

Balance at 315t March, 2024 {14.03] (14.0%)

Profitf (Loss] for the year {124} [1.24]

Add: Other Comprehensive Income on Defined Banefit Dhligatisn 010 0.10

Balanice 2t 315t March, 2025 115.17] [15.17)

The accompanylng nates are anintegral part of the financial statements

A5 par our report of even date

For Natvarial Vepari and Co LLP

(Farmerly known 28 Matvarlal Vepari & Co.)
Chartered Arcountants

Firm Registera Mo, 10697 1W AN 101085

Meha Sutarkya
Partrer
M. Ho 150816

Plece Mumbai
Date: May 23, 201%

For esd beha¥ of Bsard of Directors of
Mrikwsd India Private Limited

K Shatty 5 K, Shatty
Director Direghor
DIN; 00038703 DIN: 00032831




Mikusu India Private Limited

Statement of Material Accounting Policy Information and Other Explanatory Motes for financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2025

1

31

Company Overview

Mikusu India Private Limited is a company domiciled in India, incarporated on April 09, 2022, under the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company is principally engaged in the business of trading of Agro chemical
products. The registered office of the company is located at Mumbai, Maharashtra,

Authorization of Standalone Financial Statements
The Standalone Financial Statements were autharised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
Directors on May 23, 2025,

These financial statements can be amended by the board of directors till they are placed before the
sharehalders and also by the shareholders before their approval for adoption.

Basis of Preparation, Accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions and Material Accounting
Policy Information:

Basis of Preparation of Standalone Financial Statements

# Statement of Compliances
The Standalone Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards
(“Ind AS") prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”), the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act
These Standalone financial statements are prepared under the historical cost canvention an the
accrual basis except for certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, which are
disclosed in the financial statements,

# The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

a) certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value, and
b) defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

# Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard
is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use,

» The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity are
prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013 (the
Act). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented in accordance with Ind AS 7
“Statement of Cash Flows", The disclosures with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement
of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule 1l to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming
part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the
notified Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Repgulations, 2015 as amended.

# The Standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR') and all values are
rounded to the nearest crore, except otherwise indicated,
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3.2 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions.

The preparation of Standalone financial statements requires management’s judgments, estimates and
assumplions that impacts the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying notes thereon. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that might require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities in future
periods.

Estimates:

The preparation of the Standalone financial statements in conformity with IND AS requires management
to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management
becomes aware of circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the
financial statements in the period in which changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements,

Judgments:

The company's management has made the following judgments, which have the most significant effect
an the amounts recognised in the financial statements, while formulating the company’s accounting
policies:

a. Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits):

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation invalves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future, These incdude the determination of the
discount rate; future salary increases, attrition rates and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
invelved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit ohligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Discount rate: The said parameter is subject to change. In determining the appropriate discount rate
(for plans operating in India), the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in
currencies which are consistent with the post-employment beneflit obligation. The underlying bonds
are reviewed periodically for quality. Those having excessive credit spreads are excluded from the
analysis since they do not represent high quality corporate bonds,

Martality rate: Itis based on publicly available mortality tables. Those martality tables tend to change
at an interval in response to demographic changes. Prospective increase in salary and gratuity are
based on expected future inflation rates.

b. Useful lives of praperty, plant and equipment:

The company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods,

€. Impairment of property, plant and equipment:

For property, plant and equipment and intangibles, an assessment is made at each reporting date to
determine whether there is an indication that the carrying amount may not be recaverable or
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
the company estimates the assets or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
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loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised, As at the end of the year no
judgement were exercised in this regard which impacts the useful life or the depreciation rates.

d. Impairment of investment in subsidiaries:

For determining whether the investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates as well as
other investments are impaired requires an estimate in the value in use of investments. In
considering the value in use, the company has estimated the future cash flow, capacity utilization,
operating margins and other factors of the underlying businesses / operations of the investee
companies. Any subsequent changes to the cash flows due to changes in the above-mentioned
factors could impact the carrying value of investments. The management assesses that all the
investment are strategic fit for the company and therefore do not need any impairment provisioning
as at the year end.

e, Inventaries:

The company estimates the net realisable value [MRV) of its inventaries by taking into account
estimated selling price, estimated cost of completion, estimated costs necessary to make the sale,
obsolescence considering the past trend. Inventories are written down to NRV where such NRV is
lower than their cost.

f. Recognition and measurement of other provisions:

The recognition and measurement of other provisions is based on the assessment of the probability
of an outflow of resources, past experience and circumstances known at the closing date, The actual
outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary from the amount included in other
provisions,

g, Leases:

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS
116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgement. The Company uses significant
judgement in assessing the lease term |including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount
rate. The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with
both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is
reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it
considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to
exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The
discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being
evaluated or for a portfalio of leases with similar characteristics.

3.3 Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time, For the
year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS - 117 Insurance Cantracts and amendments to
Ind A5 116 — Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f.
April 1, 2024, The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has
determined that it does not have any significant impact in its financizl statements.
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3.4 Material Accounting policies Information
a) Currentand non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Division Il of Schedule 11l ta the Companies Act, 2013.
Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation In cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
maonths for the purpose of current and nan-current classification of assets and liabilities,

An assetis treated as current when:

- Itis expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in narmal operating cycle,
- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,

= Itis expected to be reallsed within 12 months after the reporting period; or

- Itis cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.

A liahility is treated as current when:
- Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,
Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- Thereis no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability far at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.
b) Property Plant and Equipment, Investment Property and Depreciation / Amortisation

A. ltems of Property, plant and equipment including Capital-work in-progress are stated at cost, net
of accurnulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, Cost comprises the
purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met,
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its boak value only if it
increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance. When significant parts of plant and equipment zre required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recagnized in statement of profit or loss as incurred, On
transition to INDAS for the first time, the Company adopted the deemed cost approach
mentioned in INDAS 101 - First time adoption in respect of its Praperty, Plant and Equipment.

B. Depreciation is provided on written down value based on useful life of the assets as prescribed
in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/disposal
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£)

d)

e)

of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of such addition, or upto the month of such
sale/disposal, as the case may be.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant equipment are
reviewed at each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

Investments
i} Investment in Subsidiary

Investments in Subsidiary are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an
indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down
immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in assaciates, the difference
between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss,

Inventories

Allinventories are stated at lower of 'Cost and Net Realizable Valug',

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on awelghted
average basis,

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
remaining costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet camprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents cansist
of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts, if any as they
are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Foreign currency transactions

i. All transactions in foreign currency are recorded in the reporting currency, based on closing rates
of exchange prevalent on the dates of the relevant transactions.

Ii. Manetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date, are
converted in reporting currency at the closing rates of exchange prevalling on the said date.
Resultant pain or loss is recognized during the year in the Statement aof Profit and Loss,

iil. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are carried at the exchange
rate prevalent on the date of the transaction.

iv. Exchange difference arising an the settlement of monetary items at rates different from those at
which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements,
are recognised as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.
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gl Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined.

based on best estimate required to settle each obligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events,
whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one ar more uncertain
future events not whelly within the contral of the Company. Contingent liahilities are also present
obligations where it s not prabable that an outflow of resources will be required, or the amount of
the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized
in the financial statements but are disclosed separately.

Contingent assets are not recognised unless it becomes virtvally certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise

h) Financial Assets

# Recognition and initial measurement
Trade Receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets are
initially recognised when the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets other than those measured subsequently at fair value through profit
and loss, are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

» Classification and Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

i. Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset In order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the Effective Interest rate method (EIR). Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium and fees or cost that are 2n integral part of the EIR,

The EIR amartization is included in finance income in the statement of profit & loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and [oss.

ii. Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Financial assets are measured at fair value through Other Comgrehensive Income [QCI) if these

financial assets are held within a business model with an ohjective to hold these assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of
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the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Afterinitial recognition, these assets are subsequently measured at Fair Value. Interest Income
under Effective Interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment losses are
recognized in the statement of profit and Loss. Other net gains and |osses are recognized in OCIL

iil. Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCl is carried at Fair
Value through Profit and Loss

iv. Equity Investments - All Equity investments within the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at Fair
WValue, Such equity instrurnents which are held for trading are classified as FVTPL. For all other
such equity instruments, the company decides to classify the same either as FYOCI or FVTPL.
The company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification s
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

For Equity instruments classified as FVOCI, all fair value changes in the instrument excluding
dividends are recognized in OCI. Dividends on such equity instruments are recognized in the
statement of Profit or loss.

# De-recognition of Financial Assets:

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:
-The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

On de-recognition, any gains or losses on all debt instruments {other than debt instruments
measured at FVOCI) and equity instruments {measured at FVTPL) are recognised in the statement
of Profit and Loss. Gains and |osses in respect of debt instrument measured at FVOCI and that are
accumulated in OC| are reclassified to Profit and Loss on de-recognition. Gains or losses an equity
instruments measured at FVOCH that are recognised and accumulated in OCI are not reclassified to
Profit or Loss on derecognition.

i) Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

i) Recognition and Initial Measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual
praovisions of the instrument,

Financial Liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for anitem not at fair value through profit
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il

K

and loss, net of transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

il) Classification and Subsequent Measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on thelr classification, as described below:

-Financial liabilities at fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL. Financial Liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value and changes therein, including any interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss.

-Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities other than those which are classified as FVTPL are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amaortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iil) De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired, When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability zre substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss,

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Offsetting Financlal Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the lability simultaneously,

The legally enfarceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptecy of the Company
ar the counterparty.

Impairment

a, financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recagnition of impairment loss on the financial asset measured at amortized cost.
Loss allowances on trade recelvables are measured following the 'Simplified Approach’ at an amount
equal to the Lifetime ECL at each reporting date. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine
impairment loss allowance on the portfalio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its
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m)

histarically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for
forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed,

In respect of other financial asset, the loss allowance is measured at 12-month ECL only, if there is
nosignificant deterioration in the credit risk since initial recognition of an asset or asset is determined
to have a low credit risk at the reporting date,

b. Impairment of Non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups aof assets. When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, the assetis cansidered impaired and is written down toits recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other avallable fair value indicators.

c. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present ohligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying ecanamic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
abligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of
any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates,

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.
* Sale of goods

The Company recognises revenue generally at the point in time when the products are delivered
to customer ar when it is delivered to a carrier for export sale, which is when the contral over
product is transferred to the customer. In contracts where freight is arranged by the Enmpany
and recovered from the customers, the same is treated as a separate performance obli
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and revenue is recognized when such freight services are rendered,

Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discaunts, rebates, refunds, credits, price
concessions, incentives, or other similar items in a contract when they are highly probable to be
provided. The ameunt of revenue excludes any amount collected on behalf of third parties.

# Interest and dividend:

Interestincome including income arising on other instruments are recognised on time proportion
basis using the effective interest rate method.
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.

n) Employee benefits
a) Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per lacal
regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are accounted for as define contribution plan and the contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

b) Defined Benefit Plan

The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reparting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation Is calculated annually by actuaries using the
projected unit credit method,

The present value of the defined benefit abligation denominated in Rs. is determined by discaunting
the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reparting period
an government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of related ohligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in em ployee benefit expense
in the statement of profit and loss,

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the year in which they accur, directly in other camprehensive income,

Changes in present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss as past service cast,

¢} Leave Entitlerment
Leave entitlement are provided based on an actuarial valuation, similar to that of gratuity benefit,

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, in respect of leave entitlement are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they oceur,
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pl

a)

d) Shart-term Benefits

Short-term employee benefits such as salaries, performance incentives ctc. are recognised as
expenses at the undiscounted amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period in which the
related service is rendered,

Borrowings and Borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
oceur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Taxation

i, Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit
before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Company's current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

ii. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recagnized on tempoarary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
fallow frarm the mannerin which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of
bonus issue, If any.
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f)

t)

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the welghted average number of shares outstanding during
the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The number of equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented far any bonus
shares issues,

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows, The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are
segregated.

Trade Payables & Trade Receivables,

A payable is classified as a ‘trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods
purchased or services received in the normal course of business, These amounts represent liabilities
for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year which are
unpaid, These amounts are unsecured and are usually settled as per the payment terms stated in the
contract. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.

A receivable is classified as a ‘trade receivable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of
goods sold or services rendered in the normal course of business. Trade recelvables are recognised
initially at transaction values and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method (if
there is a financing element), less provision for expected or lifetime credit loss,

Segment Reporting

Based on " Management Approach "as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments the chief operating
decision maker regularly monitors and reviews the operating results of the whaole Company as one
segment of "Agro -Chemicals”. Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108, the Company’s entire business falls
under this one operational segment and hence the necessary infarmation has already been disclosed
in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss. The analysis of geographical segments is
based on the areas in which customers of the company are located.




RUKUSU INDUA PRAVATE LIBUITED

OIN : 24292 MM I PTCIROZTE

Wates forming part of the Standalone Finendal Statements as atand for the year ended 3158 March 2025
(Al figures are Rupees in Crores unless otherwise stated)

Nate 1 Property, plant and equipments

Particulars Computers Vehleres Frln & Total

Flatures
Gross Carnying Value (At Deerned Cost)
Batamge a1 15t Aped, 2023 0.03 0.42 0.00 0.45
Additions 0.03 . - 0.03
Drisposaly . . . J
Balance st 30st March, 2024 0.05 0.42 0,00 0.47
Additions 0.0l - . ool
Dizposats - - . =
Belance at 315t March, 2025 005 0.42 0.00 0.48
Actumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance at 151 April, 2023 o1 0.09 oo 0.10
Charge far the yesr 003 010 000 013
Disposaly - - - -
Balsnoe at 3151 March, 2024 0,04 0,19 000 0.13
Charge for the year 001 o0.or 000 008
Disposaly - = - -
Balance 8t 3154 March, 2025 0.0% 0.6 .00 Q.31
Netcarrying value as on 315t March, 2024 0.01 0.23 0.00 0.24
Net carrying value a3 on 315t March, 2035 0.01 0.16 0.00 0.17

Hote : WOV of Fumiture and Fivture is Bs 11,354 a5 on Mareh 31,2025 and 85 15,321 in March31, 2024

HoteThe Campany has carried out the erercise of asiessment of any indication of impairment te its property plant snd equipment 25 on the Batance Sheet
date. Pursuant to such exercise it is determined that there st been na indicators of impalrment to its propeety, plant 2and equipment a5 at batance shest date.




MAIKUSU INDLA PRIVATE LIKITED

CIM z U2A25aMHI0Z 2PTCIZ02 TS

Metes farming part of the Standalane Finantisl Staterments as at and for the year ended 31et March 2025
(Al figures are Rupess in Crores unless olhersdte stated)

Kate 2 Investments

As st Asat

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Investrnents in subsldiary (At Coun)
23,08, 718 [A5 a1 March 31, 2004 39,08,715) Equity Shares of Daaffil Chemicals India Limited PV of 110 sxth 658 (]
[T 698

A Aggregate Value of Invesiment

i Asat Asat
Pamticulye 3L March 2025 31 March 2024
Argregate amaunt of Quated lrvestment 6.58 6,58
Apgregate market value of Quated fnvestment 55.21 IRAT

Dhring the previous year ended March 2024, the Company has made investment in Darkaffil Chermices India Limvted far 29,08,719 shares & 24 per thase
representing 48.50% stake. Thete sharas were purchased sad traraferred to the Company In tranches with the lsst trasche being transferred o February
05,2024, The Compary contends it has a defacto control on Daitalfil Chemicals India Umited being the single [argest shareha'der who has controliing veles a1
the AGM of the Compary. Hence Datcaffil Chamlcals India Urrited is considered as the Subsidiary Company,

B Discloture under 1854) of Campanles Act.

Particulars Purpase Ag al s at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Caiteaffil Chemicals India Limited Irvestmert - 698
Tatal - 698

€ Inpreviaus year, the Company has received fund from any person{s) or entity(ie), inefuding foreign entities [Furding Party) with Lhe understarding [whether
recorded in writing or atherwise] that the compary shall directly or indirectly lend or irvest in other persons or entitles identfled in any manner whatsosver
by er an behal! of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiarics),

MNature of Transaction - Irnvestment

Funding Party
Heranba Industries Limited

M of Party CINf PAN Address Amaurt Datle
Hene of the Funding Party & Relationship
Heranka Industries Limited - Ho'ding Compary CINAZ4230GHS | 2nd Floor, A-Wirg Fartuse Avirehi, 100 Q20172024

SIPLO01ITALS  Hambli Gafi, Jaln Deresar Lane,
|Barivali = West, Mumbal- £00092,
rdia

Hame of the Campany of persons Yo whom the maney s advances f foaned parties K Relation ship- Payment s made 1o the erstwhile promaters of
Daikalfil for aequisition of Dalkalfil as folfows by the Company.

Arrit Patel - Ergbwh®e Promator of the Subsidiany ADAPP51970  |B-10,5terling Apartmant 35- peddar 258 0z/01/2024
Road , Hear Sophla College, Curbally
Hill, Mumba 400018, Maharashiras,
India

'HP:'.';-I HUF - Erstwhi’e Promotor of tha Subsidiary AADHAESTEN  [R-10.Sterding Apartment 33- paddar 011 080172024
Road , Hear Sophla Coltege, Curbalta
Hill, Murba 400008, Miharashira,
India

Dhiwvani Patel - Erstwhile Promatar af the Subsidany ALSPGS491 B-10,5terfing Apartmant 35- paddar 0.04 08,0130
Road , Kear Sophia College, Curballa
Hill, Murha 400006, Miharasktra,
India

Aditya Patel HUF - Erstwhile Promotor of the Subsidiary BAQHADOIOE  [B-10,%terfing Apari-ent 33 peddar] ooz 03,/01/3024
Road , Kear Saphis Callege, Curhalla
Hill, Mureha 400026, Maharashira,
India

Caffil Private Limited - Erstwhile Promator of Subsidiany US1100G11571F (249, G0, Fhase 1,4 tva) 1.2 08/a1/2024
TCOO1827 Ahmedabad- 382445 Gujarat, 1nda




FAIELIAL INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN - U24253MHIDE2PTCIR0TE

Hetes farming pant of the Standstene Firancal Statements a3 a1 and for the year ended 315t March 2015
{All figures are Rupees in Crores unless atherwdse sfated)

Mikir Sorawa’a - Erstwhile Shareholder of Subsidiary AMZPSEITSF [R.MNo. 19, Bldg -35 Krishaa Baug 054 08,01,/ 1024
WV.PRpad , 2nd Fawada Girgaon,
KNumbal 400004, Maharashtra, Ind'a

Nitin Bhagat - Erstwhile Premotor of Subsidiary AFCPBI914M (3-8 Vaibhaw  Apartrents, 80 012 | 12/01/2024
Bhu'abhal Desai Aced, Chamba'la Hit
Mumbai- 400025, Maharashtra, India

Aruna Merckaat - Erstwhile Promator of Subsidiary AGCPMOTEIN  |3-A, Akash Ganga 3rd floor, E3, 011 00142024
Bhulabhai Desal Foad Opp. Tata
Garden, Cumba™ Hill, Mumbai -

ADD01E, Maharashira, Indla

Manica Patel - Erstwhile Shareholder of Subsldiany AEHPRI1IB0 |14, Alkapuri Socisty Nr. Hirabaug -3 0.1a 08,01/2024
Ghaliadia , Ahmedibad - 380061,
Gujarat bndia,

Mlita Bhagat - Erstwhile Promator of Subsidiary AMOPBSAESA 170, Sukh Shanti 19 Peddar Rasd ooe | 17fan2024

Mear Jashlok Hosp'tsl , Cumbals Hill,
Mumbal - 400025 Maharashira, dis

Adtya Patel - Erstwhile Promator af Subsidiary ABNPRG1A) B-10,51erliag Apestment 3. peddar 035  O0RM01/2024
Road , Nexs Sophis College, Cumballal
Hifl, Mumba 400016, Miharashira,

fndra
COM [Luvernbourge] S.A [Uquidater of HGE, Chemicats 54 [AANCCEESTE  [€ € M (Lumerrburg] 5 A 2 Bis Ruel 181 | 12/01/2004
ard fiduciary of Prircipals] - Ergtwhile Sharehotder of Astrid, 1143, Luxermdurg
Fate 3 Other finangial sesets
Agat Asat
Farticubey 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rent deposits® 0.m
Staff Advance oo
®|Full Figure a5 March 31, 2035: Re. 25000 March 31, 3024: s, Nil)
Tatal 002 -
Mete & Deferred Tax Assats[Net)
Az at As at
Parimian BMarch2025 31 March 2024
Delerred Tax Assets
Froperty, Plant and Equipment 03 0.0z
Fresitians on Dovbiiul Debts
Tax Dissllawances 155 0.67
Unzhsarbed Tax Losses 318 4.03
Toral 4,96 4,72

Hote: The cerrpany during the year has created Deferred tax s5set on urabsorbed Iosses conslidering that there isreasorable certaiaty that the projected
brand L3les w7l generate reascnable prafits in future,

Haote 5 Other Asiets

Asal Asat

CATRPUAIE 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Fea Current
Advance Ineome Tax (et of Pravision for Tavation] 003 o0

003 000
Current
Advance to Supgliers [Unsecured, Considered gaod) L ET] .10
Balznce with Revaras Autborities 13 3.06
Prepald espeases 015 a.10

0.65 316




FAIKUEL INDLA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIM : U24253MHICRAFTCIZ0TE

Hotes farming part of the Stendatone Financlal Staterments a5 at and for the year ended 115t Marth 2025

(Al figures 2re Rupees n Crates unless atherwlse stated]

Hote &, Inventory

Asat Al
Parthartars 3 March 2025 31 March 2024
Traded goods
At Depots 3102 30.85
Goods in Tremsit 0.71 078
3173 31,63
The disclasure af inventorfes recogniied a5 an expente in accordance with paragraph 36 of IND AS s a5 follaws:
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2015 31 March 2024
Amaunt of inventories recognised a3 an expenie. 12491 BlO&
Amaunt af write - dawn of Invenlosies recagnised 28 an expense D] 1.64
12511 23,72
Nate 7. Trade Recelvables
Az at Asat
Patisiars 3LMarch2025 31 March 2024
Unsequred but consldered good
Trade Recetvables GEOT A7.94
Trade Receivables which have sigaificant increase in Credit Risk 435 234
Less: lmpairment lass atlowance (4.35) 12.38)
G207 4794

&  Expected Credit Loss
Allewance for Ex r

In aeeardence with ind A5 109, the Company uses the evpected eredit loss ["ECL") madel for measurement and recognition of brpeinment loss on its Lrade
recebvabies o any contractual right to recetve cash or another financis? asset that result from transadtions that are within the scope of Ird A5 115, Far this
purpate, the Campany uies a provision matri to compate the expected credit fots armaunt for trads recetvables. The provdslon matrie takes fnto sceaunt

externg! and interna! credit risk factors and historlcal data of oredin losses from warlous eustomers.

The trade receivables agelng schedule (based on Bill date] for the year ended on 31t March, 2025 as Follows:

Undisputed Total
Considered Good|  Significant credit impalred
Range of Ofs periad A
risk
Unhitled
Ket Due = - .
less than & rrarths 35,70 a.75 1e.4%
Bmanths - 1 year 1581 143 1434
1-1year SLED 1.07 10.67
-3 year oBs .10 0.86
> Jyears - a -
Tatal E8.07 4.35 T4
Less: Impalrment loss allawance . 18,35} {9.35)
Tatal E8.07 - E8.07
The trade recebvables agelng schadute (based on Bl date] for the year ended on 315t March, 2024 a8 folaws:
Undis puted Total
Considered Good|  Signifigant eredit irpaired
Fange ok pacied Trcrease In oredit
rlik
Unbilled - -
Kat Dua - . -
Tess than 6 months 3239 0ES 304
Gmonths - 1 year 1430 158 15,78
1-2 yeas 1.35 015 1.50
2-1year . - =
>3years = - =
Total 47,94 1.34 50,32
Lets: Impairment loss allawance = [2348] m
Total 47.94 - 47,54
Maowvement of Expected Credit Loss
Changes during

Partleulars Sparirg the year Clasing
March 31 2035 2.38 1487 435
Merch 31,2034 010 127 235




RIKUEU INDIA PRIVATE LINITED
CIN : UR4252MHI02IPTCIZ0276

Hotes forming part of the Standalane Financial Statements a1 3t and for the year ended 315t March 2025
(Al figures are Rupees In Crores vnless otherwise stated)

Kate 8. Cash & Cash Equivatents

Particulars ALt A
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Belanced with banks:
-If eurrent seeaunts .75 850
Crih on hard 0.00 0.0
{Full Figure as Basch 31, 2025: 85, 1837 March 31, 2024: Rs, 22460}
2,76 28]
Nate 9. Equity Share Capital
As 3t At

Pasticulars
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Auvthorised Skare Capital;
1,00,000 [March 31, 2024 1,00,000) Equity Shares of €10/ each 010 aia

Btved, Subtoribed and Fald-up capital:
50,000 {March 31, 2024 50,000) Equity Shares of % 10/ each fu'ly paid vp 0.05% 004
065 [

a} Recondlistion of number of equity share cutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the perisd

Particulars Number of shares Humberel
shares

Fully pald Equity Shares

Opening Balanges 50,000 50,000
Add: Increase/Decresse during the year £ :
Balance at 315t March, 1024 50,000 50,000
#dd: Ircrease/Decrezse during 1he year - -
Batance at 385t March, 2025 50,000 S3,000

b) Terma [ rights attached to equity shares
The company has # singhe cass of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each sharebolder of equity share i entitied to one vate por share, The
compary dedares and pays dividend in trdian rupees,

Inthe event of liquidation of the corrpary, the halders of equity shares will be entitled to receboe the remsining sisets of the compary in propoetion to the
nurher of equity shares held by each shareholder, after settlement of all preferential shfgations.

) Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares In the company
Particulars As et 31st Mareh, 2025 At at st March, 2024
Mo of shares held % of holding Mo of shares held % of holding

Fully pald equity shares
Heranba Industries Lirited (slong with its Nomirees) 50,000 100% 50,000 100%
50,000 100% 50,000 1005

d) Details of Promoters sharehalders halding in equity shares of the company

For the year ended March 31, 2025

Promaoter Kame MHo.of Shares sof total shares % Change duiring
the year

Promoters Group

Herarka Industries Limited 43995 3,.9%5% 000%

Ladashiv Kanayan Shetty® 1 0.00:% 0.00%

Raghuram Karayz2n Shetty® 1 0.008% 000%

* (Nominee OF Heranba Industries lin'\-'t!d:l

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Promoter Name MNo.ef Shares ol total shares Change during
the year

Promoters Growp

Heranba Industries Limited 43,998 53,996 0.00%

Sadashiy Kanayan Shetty® 1 0.002% 0.00%

Raghuram Kanayan Shetty® 1 0.002% 0003

* |Momines Of Heranba Endustries Limited)

M Entire Shareho!ding is held by the Halding Company
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CIN :UZA295MH IO PTCIZOR 76

Nates forming part of the Standslone Financisl Sistements as at and for the year ended 315t March 2015
(%9 figures are Bupees in Crores untess atheraise stated)

Note 1. Other Equity

Partiulars fent Akt
31 Margh 2025 31 March 2024
Retafned Easaings (15.17) [14.03)
[15.17) [14.03)
Rate 11. Borreawings
Agan As at
Fitiaian 3L March 3035 31 March 2028
Mon Current Unsecured
Loan from Related Parties 35.11 3114
35.11 11.14
a) _Detalls of Related Party
A at As at
o g 31 March2025 31 March 2024
Heranba Industries Lirmited 3511 314
bl Terms of Borrowings:
The foznis for & pericd of 5 years, esrrying interest £ 5% p. 2. Interest and pringioal are repayable 3t the erd of 5 yEarE,
] Désclosure as per the amendment to IND AS 7 Statement of Cash Flow:
Particulars Interest Accrued ::;:L;T Total
Opening Balinge (i1i¥] T.04 106
Charges in Financial Cash Flaw 017 1160 2243
Interest Accrued 180 = 1E0
Other Man-Cash Adjusterents oo X oo
Internal Transfer 11.50} 150 -
Closing Balance at 215t March, 2024 017 EIR LS .31
Changes in Finangial Cash Flow [G11) 1.44 1.13
Irterast Avcrued 114 BT
Other Non-Cash Adjusiments [01m) [ | [2.20)
niernal Tranifer 11.53) 253 -
Closing Balance at 31st March, 3015 [EE] ELF] 5.
Hate 12, Provislons
Particutars Asal Arat
31 March 1025 31 March 2074
Mea Current
Prardision for Gratuity 041 a7
0.41 0.7
Current
Prowision for Gratuity 0.0 0oa
Provision for Leave encashment -
000 0uoa

{Full Figure as March 31, 2025: Rs. 16207 March 31, 2024: Bs, 9267)

Disclosure in sceordance with Ind AS = 19 “Empleyee Benefits®, of the Companles (Indlan Accounticg Stardards] Rules, 2045,
The companmy has carried out the actuarizl valuation of Gratwty and Leave Encashment Tiahilfty ueder actuarial printinle, in accordsnce with Ind AS 19 .

Emplonyes Benefits,

Gratity is a cefined benefit plan under which emplayees who have completed five years or mere of service are entitled to gratuity on departure from
employment 3t an ameunt equivalent to 15 diys sa'ary (based on last drawn salary) for each eomploted year of service restricted 1a Rs 0,20 Crares, The

Comraary's gratuity liability Is unfunded.

I} Theamount recogrised Inthe balance sheet aad the movements in the net defined Benefit obigation of Gratuity cver the year |5 as follow

Particufars Az on As an
March 31,2005  March 31, 2024
{8} Recontiliation of opening and tfasing balances of Defined benefit DbSgation =t
Defined Benefit chifgation a1 the beginning of the year 0.37 005
Current Senvige Cost 0.25 023
Interest Cost 0.02 0.03
Actuarial (Galns)fLosses on O igations - Due to Charge i Financisl Assumptions 0.0z 0.01
Actuarial (Gains)Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience Adjustrment {0.07) [2.02)
Actuarial (Gains)Losses on Obligations - Due to Demograshic Assurmptians 0.08) -
Barefits paid directly by the Emplayer '
Banefits pald by the Furd - b
Defined Benefit ohligation at the year end 0.41 07
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Hates forming part of the Standalone Firandal Statements a5 at and for the year ended 315t Marh 2025
(47 flgures are Rupees in Crores unless atherwise stated])

[b) Exponses recognited during the year [ Under the head = Emplayees Benefit Expenses )
Current Sendce Cost o5 023
Interest Codt 002 o0l
Het Cost 0.7 0.23
{r] Actuarlal [GalnlfLass- Other Comprehensive Income [ 13) (A1)

{d} Met Rabilities recognlied in the balance sheet

Short-term provislors .03 0.00

{Fu'l Figure as March 31, 2025: Rs. 16207 March 31, 2024: Rs, 9257)

Long-term provisions 041 Q.27

iy Actuarisl Assumptions
Particularg Al on Asan
Mleech 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Evpected return on Flan Asgets MHA N
Discount rate {per anrum] B73% T.23%
Attrition rate 1000 500
Rate of escalation in safary (per anaum) .00 B0

i) Evaected Payout

Particulars AL on Asan
March 31, 2025 Mlarch 31, 2024

Pregected Benefits Payable In Future Years From the Date of Reporting

Ewpected Payout 15t Following Year 0.0 00
[Full Figure as March 31, 2035: Rs. 16207 March 31, 2024: Rs. 9267)

Expected Payout 2nd Folowing Year 0.0o [ifes]
[Full Figuee as March 31, 2025 Rs. 15960 March 31, 2024: Rs. 9755)

Exvpected Pryout 3rd Following Year ool 0o

Expecied Payeut dth Fo'lowing Year 0oa nat

Espzcied Payeut Sth Fellewing Year 006 oazx

Especied Payout Gth o 10th Fallawing Year 0.5 01s

Sumoof Years 11 ard abave [0 058

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary consldared in 2ctuarial vatuation, take inte sccount inflaton, senlority, promotion srd ather relevant factors
intluding supsty and demard in the employment market, The above information is eertified by the athuary

There s na riaime funding requirement for a gratuity plan In tndia and there s no compulsion onte part of the company fully o partisly pre-fund the
lFakdities under the plan,

) Sensithvity anabysts
A guantitativa Sensithity anatysts Tor significant assumption
Particulars Distount  $alaryGrowth Rate  Attritlon Rate

Rale

Changes in Assumptian
March 31, 2025 1% % I
March 21, 2034 1% 1% %
Intrease in assemptian
March 31, 2025 (2.03] 004 (omlf
March 31, 2024 (3.08] [iTil (oo}
Decrease In assumption
March 31, 2025 a4 (0.04) oo
Kareh 31, 2024 003 13.03) oat

Gratuity It a delined berefit plan and campany is expased to the FoBowing Rigks:

1 52%ry Risk: The present va've of the cefined berefit plan Nability is ealewlated by reference to the futwe salaries of merbers. As such, anincrease In the salary
of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's Rability,

2 Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked 10 the G 52c. Rate will increass the presest va've of the lizkility requiring higher provision, A Fall in
the distount rate generaly increases the mark to market value of the assats depending on the duration of sset.

3 Asset Liskdlity Matching Rish: The plan faces the ALM risk a5 to the matching cash flow. Since the planis invested Inlines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1562,
this generally reduces ALM ritk.

4 Mfortality risk: Since the benefits under the plan s not payable for life time and payabie til retiremens sge anly, plan doss not have ary longevity risk




MIKUSU INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIM : P24253MHI02IPTCIZ0RTE

Notes farming part of the Stsndslane Financial Statements as 8t and fof the year gnded 315t March 2015
(Al figures are Rupaes in Crores unless otherwise stated)

Nate 13, Trade payaties

Asat As at

Partigulars 31 March 2035 31 March 2024
Tatal outstsrding dues of mitro enterprises and smal enterprises 5.79 .
Total outstarding dues of creditors ather than micro eaterprises and small enterprises 79.13 77.82

B4.52 T1.82
Details of Payable 1o Related Party

As at Al at

Sactiodan I March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Heranba Industries Limited 16,78 1562
Dalkaffil Chemicals India Limited 573 i

8257 75.62
The trade payable ageing schedule (based an B3l date] for the year ended an 315t March, 2025 bs fellaws:

Ohers
Nangn ot Gjs periad Undisputed Disputed Undisputed Disputed
Unbilled - - 085 -
Mot Dus - a £
Less than 1 year 579 Taar
1-2 years . ool
23 year .
=3 years . .
Tetal 5,75 73,13
The trade payab’e ageing schedule [based an Bill date] for the year ended on 315t March, 2024 a3 follows:
PASME Others

Rangs of Ofs paried Undisputed Disputed Undisputed Dlsputed
Urdilled % - 055 -
Mot Dug - -
Less than 1 year - TEE4
1-2 years - D2
2-3 year -
=1 years 4
Tetal 71.82 =
Details of dues to micra and small enterprises as defined under MSKED Act, 2006 March 31,2015 March 31, 2025
Principal amount dus 579 -
Interast due on above oo
the amaunts of the payment made ta the supplier beyond the appointed day during each ccounting year -
Amount of interest paid in terms of Sec 16 of the Micro, Small and Madum Enterprises Development Act, X006 5 -
Amount of interest due ard paysb'e for the period of delay 01D
Amaunt of Interest acorved and remeining unpald as at year end 010

Amaunt of further Interest rerrzining due and payabie in the succeeding year

The above irformation regarding Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been Identified ca the basis of

Infarmation availztie with the Company.

Note 14, Other Financial LiabTities

Particulars Az al AL
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current
Interast accrued [ E1] 17
Interest secrued on MSME 10 -
Segurity Depasits 181 116
Erplayes Benefits Payatle 163 1.0
Payable for Rate Dofferences 465 336
9,54 6,59
Kote 15, Other Current Liabifies
Asat As at
Farticulas 31 March 2085 31 March 2024
Current
Adwance from Customers Coatraet Lisbiling 110 104
Statutory Nablites 041 030
151 1331




FAIELSU INDIA FRIVATE LIMITED

CIN U295 HIDRIPTCIE0RTE

Hotes forming part of the $tandalone Firenis! Statements as at and for the year ended 315k March 2015
(AN figures are Rupeesin Crores un'ess atherwite stated}

Hete 16. Revenue from Operatians
Particulars 2024-25 T013-24
Rewvenue from Operations
Ssle of goods 15140 9290

Other Operating Revenrue

Export Incentivies a ool
15244 q3141
| Disclosure inaccordance with Ind AS - 115 *Revenue Recognitian Dlselosures®, of the Campanles {Indian Accounting Standards) Bules, 1015
8| Revenue disaggregation based on Senvite Type and by Geagraphics! Region:
1 Beverae disaggregation by type of Sendoe Is 25 follows:
Partioulars 1024-15 1013-14
Lale of Traded Goods - Agrackemical 152 40 92,50
Espart Incentive - 0oL
152.40 91.91
iy PRecenue disaggregation by gesgraphical region is as follaws:
Partigutars 202415 202324
Ind=a 152.05 Grd41
Outside Indin 0.35 050
Tatal revenue from aperations 152.43 4191
Tiening af revenue recognition
A pointinUme 152 40 9791
Tatal revenue from operations 152 40 az.a1
(k] Contract Babditles
Partieulsrs 315t March 2025 315t March 2024
Adwance from oustomess 110 104
The entire eeatract lisbility cotstandirg as on March 31,2025 and March 31,2024 will be recogniced by March 31,2026 and March 31,2025 respettiely.
[s} Significant adistrrents between the eontracted price ard revenie recognized in the Staterment of peefit 2-d loss account:
Fartioutars 1024.25 1023-24
Contract Frice 161.51 £a.32
Less:
Discounts 9.11 .41
Tolal Reverue from operations 152,40 92.91
{4} Major customers - Approimately 20E0H (FY 3.19%) of total revenue of the Carrgany is from a single customer.
Note 17, Cther Income
Partioulars 2024-25 102324
Extharge Gan oal ooz
Suadry Balances Written Back 0o 0o
(Eul Figure as March 30, J024: Ry, 327507
Other Income 003 o.ao
Tatal 0.06 0.02
Hele 18, Purchase of stock-in-trade
Particulars 1014-15 2023-24
Purchase of goods 126.23 107.14

Total 13633 107.14
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Hates formring part of the Standslene Finarcial Statements 25 at and for the year ended 315k March 2008
(AT figures are Rupees in Crores unless othensiie stated)

Niote 19. Changes In laventary of Stogk [ Trade

Partigulars 2024-35 202314
Inwentary Adustrments - Traded Goods
$tock at Commenzement 3163 521
Less : Stock at Cleding [32.73) {31.63)
Total [L1o} {23.42)
The irventory cost of traded goods Ineludes write daws of Bs.0. 20 Crare [Previcus peried Bis 164 Crove) ressectily,
Hnlgi!mwwn Benefit Expenies
Particulars 202435 202324
Salaries, wages and bonus, elc. 1281 11.03
Cortritution te provident aad other furds 031 037
Balf weilare expense 00 0,02
Total 13,14 11.32
Hote 21, Finance Costs
Partigulars 1024:15 2023-24
Irterast on Security Deposits 023 0.14
Interost on MIME 0.1a .
Interest on ICD from Halding Company 181 165
Interest on statutary dues 000 .
[Full Figure as March 31, 2025: R, 20,037}
Tatal 3.14 1.80
Kate 22. Depraclation and Amartisation Expenses
Particulars 2024-25 202324
Depeeciation of property, plant and equipment [ 013
Tatal 0.08 013
MNete 23, Other Expenses
Partlulars 1024-25 02124
Rent 101 0.85
Rates & taxes 006 0.1a
Power & Fuel 1.7 1E0
Frelght FAL] 1.75
Repairs and Malntenance 005 00z
Insurance premium 024 019
Augit Fees [Refer nate a balaw) 0oe 004
Provsion for Doubtfuf Debts 147 127
Travelling & Cenverance Expenses 258 145
Legal & Frefessiona! Fees 0.09 o1z
CHfice Expenses 013 nig
Sa'es Promation Evpenses 06X 015
Business Acguisition Expenses - 0,74
CEF Charges oE2 055
Labour Evpenies 0.60 054
CHher Expences 0.56 061
Total 1248 1r.30
a. Audit Fres
= Aud’t Tees fineliding Limited Beview fees] 0as L E]
= Tax Audit 0ual @01
Tatal 0.08 0,04
Nate 24, Tax Evpenses
Partigulars H024-25 101324
a]) tncame tax charged to statement of profit and loss
Taxfor the year -
Taxin respect of earlier yesrs - -
Deferred Tax Evpenses (027} {2.03)
Total [6.:37) [4.02]
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Hates forming part of the Standalone Finantial Statements as at and for the year ended 315t March 2015

A1 figures #re Rupeesin Crores untess atherwice stated)

b] Ingome tax eharged 1a ather comprekeasive incame
Deferred Tan Experges - OCI

{003}

[03]

The reconciliztion between the pravislon of income tax of the Company and amaunts computed by spplyicg the ndian statutory inteme tax rate to profit

before Lanes is o8 folows

| Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Arcounting grafit belore inceme tax {8.51) [16.36)
Eracted tax rates in India (%] 25.17% 25.17%
Computed expecied tax éxpentes 10.38) 1412}
Tex effects of amounts that are not deductible (taxabie) In caleulating tansble intarme:

Kt charges on secaunt of disallowanges 1.0 ek
Het charges on sccount of Alawances {0.01) {0.02)
Losses ta ba earried forward) (iet off) 10.63) 345
Ircame tax expenses - current . =
Recogniied in
I Deferred tox AssetsIiabaities in refation to: Openlng Balance fignladin DOttt Cosing balane
PrafitfLoss Comprehensive
Income
As gt 315t March 2025
Property, Flant and Equipment 002 0ol . ]
Tom Disallowanges oE? 091 10.03) 155
Urabsorbed Losses 403 |0BS) . 3138
472 0.27 {0.03) 455
As b 315t March 2024
Preperty, Flant and Equipment 001 oot ooz
Tax Disallawances D04 0E3 057
Urabtorbed Lotses 0.59 144 403
0.63 4.08 - 4.72

Hote 15. Eaming Per Share

Disclosure as requived by Arcounting Standard = IND AS 33 “Earning Per Share® of the Compantes [Indin Acecu nticg Standards] Rules 2015,
A& Met Profit f {loss) attributable to equity shareholders and the welghted number of shares cutstandicg for basic and difvied earrirgs per share are 4

Particulars 1024-15 2023-24
Profit f [Loss] for the perlod (% In Crore) .24} 112.24]
Cutstanding equity shares at period end 50,000.00 50,000.00
Weighted average Number of Shares outstanding during the period ~ Baslc 50,000.00 50,000.00
Welghted average Number of $hares outstanding during the period - Diluted 50,000.00 50,000.00
Earnings per Share - Baslc % Per Share] |248.41) [2,45512)
Earnings per Share - Diluted (% Per Share} |248.40) [2,455.12]
8 Recondliatian of welghted nember of outstanding during the perlod;
Particulars 2024-15 1033-24
Mevmingl Va'ue of Equity Shares | Per Share] 1000 1000
Tetal number of equity shares outitanding at the beginning of the period 50,000 50,000
Add ¢ lszue of Equity Shaces during the peried . -
Tetal number of equity shares sutitandng ot the end of period 50,000 50,000
Weighted awerage rurnber of equity shares at the end of period- Basie 50,000 50,000
Weighted average rurmber of equity shares a1 the end of period- Difutive 50,000 50,000
Kote 16, Contingent Lizhility and Capital Commiimants
Particulers 31-Mar25 31-Mar-24
Contingent Liakility
Demands ageinst Fracessing of TDS Payments [*) an: 0E3

"] Thie Desmerds are majorly against Inoperative PAN status due to non linking of FAN and Aadhar by the Counter parties, The Company is in the process of

getting the szme rectified fram the parties post which the demand would change.

17 Inthe opinlon of the Bosrd of Directocs, il assets other than Progerty, Plant ard Equiperent and roscurient investrments have a value on realization in the

ardnany courss of business at least equal to the amourt at whith they ere siated in the Balance Shest
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Nates farring part of the Standatone Finaneial Statements 35 at and for the year ended 315t March 2005
(A1 figures are Rupaes In Crores unless otherwise stated)

3 Distlosure In accordance with Ind AS = 108 *Operating Segments™, of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Fules, 2015,
f1d AS 102 ectablishes standards for the way that business enterprises repart infarmatian about sperating segments and relsted diseledires about produdty
and services, geographlc areas, and major customners. At the Company bs engaged in providing simfar niture of praducts, prodution proces, euttomer types
elc, the campany hzs a single operating segrrent of "Agro chermicals® | there are no differing risks and retusns attributable to the Comas 'S services fa its
customers.
Approcmately M0.50% (FY 3,09%) of tetal revenue of the Company is fram & Sirgle customer,

13 Disclosure In aecordance with Ind AS - 24 "Aelated Party Disclasures®, of the Campanies | Indisn Acousting Stendards) Rufes, 2015
Datalls are ghven in Statement -1

30 Financlal Instruments

i} The carryfng vatue and falr value of finsntial Instruments by categorfes a3 at March 31, 2025 and March 31,2026 s a1 faBiows:
Carrylng Value Foir Value Carrying Value Fair Value
March 31,2025  Marh 30,2025 March 30, 2024 March 31, 2024
] Firantisl Assels - Amortised Cast
Trade receivables 64807 £8.07 47.94 47.94
Cash and cash equivalents 276 .76 B0 EE0
Cahet Finandlal Assets 0.02 Q.03 - =
TOL.ES 10,85 56.74 SE.74
bl Financlsl Uabiittes - Amartised Cast
Borrawings 3511 15,11 3114 014
Trade Payakies g4.92 B4.02 77.82 T7E2
Other Financial Liabilities 9.54 5.54 599 6.93
129,56 12956 115.94 115.95

The management assessed that fair valve of cash and short-term depasits, trade recetvables, rads payables, and other cumrent financial assets and Babities
aparewimate thelr carnydng amounts fargely due ta the short-term maturities of these instruments.

1

b=y

Flranelal Risk Mansgement

Risk management framewark:

The Compary's acthities expose it to a varlety of financial risks: market risk, credin risk and Fevidity risk The COTPAFY'S $eninr management cwersees
management of thess risks. The Company's focus s to foreses the unpredictablity of finaaeisl mecbets aod seck to minimize polential adverse eHects on its
Tinerclal performance.

i} Market Risk
Interest rate rlsk
Long-term borrowings of the Company bear fived interest rate, thut Interest rate risk s Emited foe the Cormgany

- ereein rist
Credit risk is the rigk of Fn2ndial s to the comparny if 8 customer or counterparty toa finanels! ingrument Tai's to rrest its contractual ob'igations, ard adises
princlpaty frem the Company's recehvables from customess. Credit risk s managed thraugh eredt apcrovals, establishing credit limits and tortinuouly
mienitoring the ereditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the rormal course of busiress.

Trade and Other Aecelvables:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses the evpected credit loss ["ECL"] model for messurement and regagnition of impaisment loss on its trads
receivables o any contractusl right to recetve cash or anather financisl asset that result from rassctions that are within the scope of bnd AS 115, For this
pupase, the Company uses a provision matri to compute the expected credit lass amaunt for trede receivatles. The pravision matrix takes into socaunt
external and Internal credit risk faetars and hivtodical data of credit lasses fram varlous custamers The Company estimates impeitment under the simptfed
approach. Accordingly, it does not Lreck the ehanges in credit risk of trade recelvables, The Impalrmest armeunt rgresents lifetime espected credit loss

Iii] Liguidiey rigk

Liguidity risk Is the risk that the comparry will encourter & Hioulty in raising furds to meet commt=snts assodated with Tasnesl instroments. Liguidity risk
maragement implles maintaining sufficient eash and marketable securitces and the avallabfity of funding through comeritted eradit Facllities to meet the
obligations when dus.

Maragerment monitoes roing forecasts of the Company's iquidity pasition [cemprising the urdeawn borrewing fecilities below) ard cash and cash ecuiva’ents
on the basis of expected cath fiows, The Company marsges its liquidity risk by preparing manth on morth eash flaw profections to meaitor Bquidity
reguirerrents.

The Warking Capital Position of the Company Is ghven betaws

Particulars It March 2025 315t March 2024
Irentories 3373 3163
Trade Recehable E2.07 47.94
Cagh and Bank Balance 276 830
Crther Current Asgets 0.65 116

Total 104,21 91,63
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Nates forming part of the Standatone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 315t March 2025
(A7 figures are Rupees in Crores unless otherwise stated)

Less:

Trade payables £4.92 1282
Cther financlal Habilities q54 651
Qther Current Nablives 151 133
Prewisions ) 000 0.060
Tetal 95.97 B5.14
Het Warking Capital 814 543

The table helow summarlses the maturity profite of the Comparry's finangial lishiitles based oa cortractual undiscaunted payments.

Particulars Less than 1 year -5 years Mare than 5 years Total
Agat 31k March 2025

Berrowing - 3511 . 3511
Trade Payable g4.52 - - gL92
Others Financial Liabilities 4954 - = 9.54
Tatal 54.45 3511 - 115,56
Asat 3lst March 2024

Berrowing . 114 . 3114
Trade Payable 182 - - EER-F!
Other Finanial Liskilities £33 : - 653
Tatal £4.81 31,14 . 115,94

Fair value hlgrarchy

This section explaing the judgments and estimates made in determining the falr values of the finandal instrements that are (a) recogrised and measured at fa'r
walum and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclased in the financal stitements. Ta prosdde an Indigation about the reflabfity of
the inputs used in determining falr value, the group has dassified its finsncial insteuments into the three levels preserbed under the accounting standard, An
esplanation of each level follows urderneath the table.

Lewal 1 - Gruated prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical atsets or abdities.

Lewel 2 = Inputs other then quoted prices included within Level 1 that are ohservable for the asset or b Tity, either directhy [l.e. a5 prices) or Indirectly (12,
derlved from prices).

Lewel 3« Inpats for the assets or Habilities that are not based on cheervable market data jurobienebls inputs).

Since, there are no fingncisl aseets and financial liehitities whicth are carried a1 fair va'ue in the Fina~cial statements and therefore falr vatue hoerarchy
disclasures are not required to be preseated.

Capital management

Capital includes equity attributable to Lhe equity holdess to ensure that it maintalng an efficlent captal structure and healthy capital ratios in order to support
its bugiress and maximize shareholder value. The Company manzges its capital structure and makes adjustments to It in light of charges In ecoramic
conditions of its butiness requirements. To maintain or adjust the cagital structure, the Comparny may #djust the diiderd payment ta sharehaldars, retumn
cxpitel to shaceholdars of istue new shares,

The Comparny's adjusted net debi ta equity ratio a4 follows:

Particulars 31stMarch 2025 31st March 2024
Gross Debt 51 31.14
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalent 276 £ B0
Met debt [A) 3235 1334
Tatal Equity {B) (15.12) [12.28]
Gearing ratia [A/B) - -

Sirce Lhe Tetsl Equity is Negative, Gearing Ratio s not Caleulzled,

Refationship with Struck off Companies

The Infarmation about ranssction with struck off Companies [ﬁeﬁned wrder section 248 of the Comparnles A, 2013 or sectlon 560 of Cormpanles fst, 1955#
has been determired o the extent such parties bt been identified en the basis af the information avafable with the Comaany and the same 13 refied woan
by the auditors,

Analytical Ratios
Aralytical Ratios as per requirements of Schedu®e |1 are given in S1atement 2
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MIKLISU INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN UTA235MHI0Z2PTCARO2 TG

NWates forrring part of the Standalone Finantial Statements as at and for the year ended 315t March 2015
(A1 figures are Rupees in Crores untess otherwite stated)

Auvdit Tratl

The Minlstry of Corporate Affairs [MCA] by the Companles [Arcounts) Amendement Aules 2021 2 vide notifeation dated 24 March 2021 has issued the
“Cempanies |Audit and Auditers) Amendment Bules, 2021 has prescribed a new requirement for comparies urder the provisa to Aule 3|1} of the Companies
{Aeeaunts) Ru'es, 2084 inserted requiring companies, which uses accounting software for maintzivng s books of sccourt, shall use enly such accounting
sofiware whith has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edt log of each change made in the books of account along
with the date when such charges were made and ensurirg that the audit trall cannot be disabled.

As required under abave rules, the compeay wies Navigion ard HRMS software for its firencial sccouwrting and HR which works along with Datebase for
ma'ntaining i books of account which has a feature of recording awdit trail {edit log) facility ard the same kas been operated throughout the year for 21l
trangactions recorded and the audit trail feature has not been tampered with except

i] the sudit tradl feature was not enabled at the database level for sccaunting software *Mavision” 1o log ary Srect data changes, usad for malntenance of 21l
ateounting records bry the Company,

ii] At preseat the sudit trail is preserved on’y for a period of sin manths and 21l audin trails beyosd six ranlhs are rat presened dus [o space eonslisnls,
Further, batk up of the sudit trail has not been preserved as per statutory requirernents for recard retention dis to eloud space corstraiats.

The balarce sheet, statement af prafit and Foss, cash flow statement, statement of changes In equity, statement of material accounting padicy infarmation ard
the other esplanatory notes forms an integral part of the financial statements of the Compary for the year ended March 31, 2025,

Figures of the previous period have been regroupedfreclasifed wherever necessary ircfuding to conform te curent period's chassification,

A per our repart of even date For and behalf of Baard of Directors of
Far Matvarial Vepari and Co LLP Mikutu India Privete Lirmited
[Fermerly known as Natvarlsl Vepar & Co.}

Chartered Arcounianis

Firmn Registeratign Mo, 10697 0w AW 101085

Wy——

] K Shetty
i Sy ﬁ Director
Partner fa DIN: CO038T03
M No 150816 =
Place Mumbal humbal

®
Date; May 23, 2025 ‘:_:,!.-
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FATKLISU INDIA PADVATE LIMITED

CIN ; UZA295MHI022PTCIE0RTE

MNates forming part of the S1zndalone Fingndsl Staternents a8 at snd for the yesr ended 315t March 2005
Statemment 1- Related Party Transactions

Relationship
I Holding Compary
a Hersnba Industries Lmited

I Company having Defacto Control
Datkaffil Chemitals India Limited - w.e f February 5, 2024

I Key Management Personnel snd their Relatives
Raghuram ¥ Shatty - Director
Sadashiv $hetby « Director
Rauna’ Shetty - Vice President Product Development
Vanita Shetty - Vice Prasident HA
Sujata Shetty = Vice President Admin

The following are the transactions with refated partles

Related party transactlons
Key
::.\_ Mature of trantaction Holding Comparmy E;::;J:::‘E:::Is :::::::::L Total
thelr Relatives

J024-25 | 2023-24 | 2024-25) 2013-24|2024-15| 203 3-24) 2024-25 | 033-24
1| Loan Taken 387 22.60 - - - 3497 2LED
Heranba ndusteles Limited 3.97 22,60 - - - - aa? 12,60
2| sale of Goods .m0 2,56 - - - -1 3Lmo 2.95
Heranba dustries Limited 31.70 295 - - - - 3170 1.96
3 | Purchase of Goods 117243 | 105,74 A4 - s - 1257 10674
Heranba Industries Limited 117.43 | 1D5.74 - - - -] 11743 10574
Daikaffil Chernboats India Um'ited 7.14 - - - 114 -
4 | Expense inourred on behall of - - a.94 - 094 -
Daikaffil Chernkeats India Lim'ted = - 0.94 - - - 054 -
5 | Interest Expenses 2.81 1,66 - - 281 166
Heranba Industries Limited 251 1.E5 - - 181 1.66
6| Salary Expensa - - . - .78 0.0 ore [k ]
Faurak Shetty - . - | o8| o 016 o
Vanita Shetty - . . - ] 024 ] o4
Sujata Shetty - . 05| 024 016 EL
7| Rent Pald aar o.or . . . . nor oar
Heranba Irdustrics Limited oa? o.o? . - - - o047 oar

B | Dutstanding as a1 Balance Sheat Date
Loan 511 214 . - - | /| w4
Heranba Industries Limited a5.11 31,14 . - - - 3511 3114
Payahle 75748 e 573 - - -| #®r5F| 75462
Dalkaffil Chemicals india Limited . - 574 - - - 579 -
Heranba Industries Umited 15,78 75.62 - - - - 16,78 7562

Terms and conditlons
AT transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm's length basis, Nose of the belince is secured.




MIKLSU INDIA PRIVATE LIMITEDR
CIN : UZATaMH 202 2PTCIE02T6 I
Hotes forming part of the Standzlone Finanglal Statements a5 st and for the year ended 315t March 2005
Stotement 2- Analytioal Batiog

5 Ratia Kumerator/ Ratio Ratia Variance Reason for variance
No, Denominator [2024-25) [2023-14] |
1 Currentfatla Cuyrrent Asset 109 105 2.10%
Current Liabilities
1 Debt-Equity ratio Total Debts -2.32 <123 4.15%
Shareholders Equity
3 Debt Service Coverage rain Nlable for deb 0.63 571 ~111.05% Increase in safes and ng
ratio sendge substantialingreass in
Dbt Service barrowing leads to Improwe in
ratio
4 Return o Eguity ratia | Het Profits after baves — 009 1.56 -94.54% Ircrease insales leads 1o
ROE] Preference Dividend Imprewe in ratio
Everage Sharehalder's Equity
Irventory Turnowes Cost of goods sold OR sales 359 4,20 “TAE%
st
Average Inventory
B Trade Recehvables Met Credin Sales 163 315 AT B

turnowver ratia
Average Accounts Recehabie

T Trade payahles Other Experises Exgl, Bad Debis 147 204 1837%
turnaver ratio wifoll and Expected Credit Lots
Prowisgien, D lgn an B
Average Trade Payables
B Net capital turnover ey Sales 1216 18.E2 17.75%
ratia
Fooerage working capital |
o Net profit ratie et Profif after Tax DHLN 13, 20% -33.B3% bncrease in sates leads to
Hat Satles Irprave In ratia
i Returmon Capital Earning befase interest and 5.15% A4 B6% 1059 63% Ircrease in sales leads to
emplayed (ROCE) Laxes Improve in ratio
Capital Empioyed
11 Beturnon lavestrent  (WW[TI)— = Sum [C(t HA HA
{RoI)

[MOTO) & Sum [WiE) * it}
Beturn on lavestment ratio is not caloulated as the investment In strateglein nature




